UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
. REGION 5
77 WEST JACKSON BOULEVARD
CHICAGO, IL 80604-3590

JAN'D 42017

REPLY TO THE ATTENTION OF

LC-8T

VIA EMAIL

Mr. Peter Berg

Patton, Hoversten & Berg, P.A.
215 Elm Avenue East

P.O. Box 249 ‘
Waseca, Minnesota 56093
Peter.Berg(@phblawoffice.com

Consent Agreement and Finél Order In the Matter of:
Waseca Quality Siding and Windows, Inc.
Docket No. TSCA-05-2017-0001

Dear Mr. Berg:

" Enclosed please find a copy of a fully executed Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) in

Resolution of the above case. This document was filed on % 1 2 {7{ A0/ 7 with

the Regional Hearing Clerk.

The civil penalty in the amount of $4,0QQ is to be paid in the manner described in paragraphs 55
| and 56. Please be certain that the docket number is written on both the transmittal letter and on

the check.

Thank you for your cooperation in resolving this matter.

Sincerely,

Lo

amela Grace
Land and Chemicals Division

Enclosure

RecyclediRecyclable » Printed with Vegetable Ol Based inks on 100% Recycled Paper (100% Post-Consumer)



UNITED STATES ENV ER@NMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGION 5
In the Matice of: }  Docket No. TSCA-05-2017-0001
, ) |
Waseca Quality Siding } - Proceeding to Assess a Civil Penalty
and Window, Inc. y  Under Section 16(a) of the Toxic
Waseca, Minnesota, ) Substances Control Act, ISUS.C,
| ) §2615) TREART N
Respondent. ) _ P T

Consent Agreement and Final Order

o US ENvRoMENTL
- Y PROTEGTION AGENCY
- Preliminary Statement N g

S Fipe By
. This is an administrative action commenced and concluded under Section 16(a) of

the Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA), 15 U.S.C. §2615(a), and Sections 22.1(a)(5),
22.13(b), and 22.18(b)(2)-(3) of the Coﬁsolidated Rules of Pracﬁce Governing  the
Administrative Assessment of Civil Peﬁalti.es and the Revocation/Vermination or Susﬁens.i‘on of
Permits (Consolidated Rules), as codified at 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.1(a)(5), 22.13(b), 22.18(b)(2)-(3).

2. Complainant is, by lawful delegation, the Dirvector of the Land and Chemicals
Dyivision, United States Environmental Protection Ageﬁcy (EPA), Region 5.

3. Respondent is Waseca Quality Sidiné and Window, Inc. (Waseca or Respondent), a
company doing business in Waseca, Minnesota. |

4. Where the parties agree to seftle one or more causes of action before the ﬁling of an
administrative complaint, the action may be commenced and concluded simultaneously by the
 issuance of a consent agreement and final order (CAFO). See 40 CFR § 22.13(b).

5. The parties agree that seitling this action without the filing of' a complaint or the

adjudication of any issue of fact or law is in their interest and in the public interest.



6.  Respondeat consents to the assessment of the civil penalty specified in this CAFO

and to the terms of this CAFO.

Jurisdiction and Waiver of Right to Hearing

7.  Respondent admits the jurisdictiomi allegations in this CAFO.
: 8 ; Respondent neither admts nor denies the factual allegations in this CAFO,

9 ) -Respondem waives any and all remedies, claimb fox relief, r1ghts to judicial or
adn"nmstratwe review, 11ghts to contest the allegations in this CAFO, and rights to appeal this
CAF 0 thaf R_espondent may have with respect to any issue of fact or law set forth in this CAF 0,
iilcludiﬁg but not limited to its right to request a hearing or petition for judicial review under
Section 16(a) of TSCA, 15 US.C. § 2615(a), 40 C.ER. § 22.15(c), and Chapter 7 of the
Adnﬁnisﬁative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. §§ 701-06.

10. Respondent consents to the issuance of this CAFO without further adjudication.

Statutorv and Resulatory Backeround

11. In promulgating the Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992,
Pub. L. No. 102-550, Oct. 28, 1998 (Title X), Congress found, among other things, that iow-level
lead poisoning was widespread among American children, afﬂicting as many as 3,000,000
“children under the age of six; at low levels, lead poisoning in children causes intelligence
deficiencies, reading and learning disabilities, impaired hearing, reduced atiention span,
hyperactivity, and behavior problems; and the ingestion of hoﬁsehold dust containing lead from
~ deteriorating or abraded lead-based paint is the mosf common cause of lead poisoning in

children. A key component of the national strategy to reduce and eliminate the threat of

[\



childhood lead peisoning is to educaie the public concerning the hazards and sources of lead-
based paint poisoning and steps to reduce and eliminate such hazards. See 42 U.S.C. § 4851

12. Section 1021 of Title X amendeﬁ TSCA by adding Sections 401-12, entitled Lead
Exposure Reduction, 15 U.8.C. §§ 2681-92.

13. Pursuant to Section 402@)(3) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2682(e)(3), EPA promulgated
regulations amending 40 C.F.R. Part 745, Subparts E and T, that apply to renovation or
remo.deiing activities in target housing, public bm’ldiﬂgs constructed ’Défore 1978, and
commercial buildings that c‘reate. fead-based paint hazards. These regulations set work praéti_ce
- standards and enéure that individuals engaged in such activities are properly trained, that training
programs are accredited, and tha’-t contractors engaged in such activities are certified. These
requirenients are known as the Renovation, Repair and Painting Program Rule (RRP Rule). |

14, Section 407 of TSCA, 15 U.5.C. § 2687, required that the regulations promulgated
by the EPA Admj;rlistrator include such recordkeeping and reporiing requirements as may be
necessary to ensure the effective imiﬂementaﬁon of TSCA Subchapter IV (15 U.S.C. §§ 2681-
92). These regulations are codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 745, Subpart E.

15. Pursuant to EPA’s amendments to the RRP Rule in April 2008, on or aﬁer April 22,
2010, no firm may perform, offer, or claim to perform renovations without certification from
EPA under 40 CFR. § 745.89 in target housng or chiid—occupied facilities, unless the |
renovation qualifies for one of the exceptions identified in 40 CT.R. § 745.82(a) or (b). 40
CIF.R. | | |
§ 745.81(a)(2)(1).

16. On or after July 6, 2010, all renovations must be pei‘formed in accordance with the



work pfactice standards in 40 CF.R. § 745.85 m target _housingl or child-occupied facilities,
unless the renovation qualifies for the éxcepﬁon identified in 40 C.F.R. § 745.82(.&). 40 C.E.R.
§ 745 81(2)(4)(ii). ' |

17. Under 40 CER. § 745.82(&), 40 CFR. Part_ 745, Subpaﬁrtr E is applicable to
renovations of target housing performed for corppensa’tion.

18. Under 40 C.FR. § 745.83, a “firm” is a company, pa-rtnership, corporation, sole
proprietorship or individual doing busiﬁess, association, or other business enﬁty; a Federal, State,
Tribal, or local government agc;:ncy;_ or a nonprofit organiéatien.

19. Under 40 C.ER. § 745.83, a “persoh” is any natural or judicial person mcluding any
individual, corporation, parinership, or associatiqn; any Indian Tribe; State, or political
subdivision thereof; any ihterste_lté body; and any depariment, agency, ot instrumentality of the
Federal Government. | |

20. Under 40 CF.R. §745.83, “renovation” is the inodiﬁcation of ény existing
structure, or pértion thereof, that results in the disttﬁbance of painted surfaces, unless that
aétivity is performed as part of an ab.atement as deﬁned by 40 C.F.R. § 745.223. The term
renovation includes, but is not limited to: the removal, modification or repair of painted surfaces
or painted components (e.g., modification of painted doors, surface restoration, window repair,
surface preparation activity (such as sanding, scraping, or other such activities that may generate
paint dusi:)); the removal of building components (e.g., walls, ceilings, plumbing, windows);
weatherization projects (e.g., cutting holes in painted surfaces to install blow;rin insulation or to
gain access to atfics, planing thresholds to install Weather stripping), and mterim conﬁ*ols that

disturb painted surfaces.



21, Under 40 CFR. § 74583, a “senovator” is an individual who either performs or
directs workers who perform renovations. A certified renovator is a renovator who has
- successfully completed a renovator course accredited by EPA or an EPA—aﬁthorized State or
Tribal program. |

22. Under 40 C.F.R. § 745.103, a “residential dwelling” is a‘single famity dweiling,
including attached structures such as porches and stoops; or a single-family dwelling unit in a
structure that contains more -than one separate residential dwelling unit, and in which each such
uni_‘t is used or occupied, or intended o be us;ed or occupied, in wholeror in part, as the residence
of onie Or More PErsons.

23. Under 40 C.F .R.- § 745.103, “target holusing” means any housing consﬁ:ucted prior
to 1978, except housing for the elderly or perséns with disabilities (unless any child who is less
than six years of age resides -01: is expected to reside in such housing) or any zero-bedroom
dwelling.

24, Under 40 CFR. § 745.103, “owner” means any entity that has legal title to target _
housing, including but not limited to individuals, parterships, colporaﬁons, frusts, government
agencies, housing agencies, Indian tribes, and nonprofit organizations, except where a mostgagee
holds legal title to property serving as collateral for a mortgage loan, in which case the owner
would be the mortgagor.

25. Under 40 C.F.R. § 745.83, “work area” means the area fhé’t the certified renovator
establishes to coniain the dust and debris generated by a renovation.

26. Under 40 C.ER. § 745.83, “pamphlet” means the EPA pamphiet titled Renovate

Right: Important Lead Hazard Information for Families, Child Care Providers and Schools
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devcloped under section 406(a) of TSCA for use in complying with section 406(b) of TSCA, or
any State or Tribal pamphlet approved by EPA pursuant 40 C.F.R. § 745.326 that is developed
for the same purpose. | This includes reproductions of the pamphlet when copied in full and
without revision or deletion of material from the pamphlet (except for the addition or revision of
State or local sourcesv of informatton).

27. Under 15U.8.C. § 2689 and 4d C.F.R. § 745.87(a), failing to comply with any
1‘eciuirement of the RRP Rule, 40 C.E.R. Part 745, Subparts E, I, and Q, violates Sectionr 409 of
TSCA, 151.5.C. § 2689, which may subjéct the violator to administrative civil penalties under
Section 16(a) of TSCA, 15U8.C. § 2615(a) and 40 C.I'.R. § 745.87(d). |

28. Section 16 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2615, authorizes the EPA Administrator to assess
a civil pené,lty of up to $25,000 for each violation of Section 409 of TSCA, 15 U.5.C. § 2689,
Fach day that such a violation continues constitutes a separate violation of Section 409 of TSCA,
15 U.8.C. §2689. The Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996, 31 U.S.C. § 3701, and its
implementing regulations at 40 C.F.R. Part 19, increased these statutory maximum penaities to
$27.500 per day of violation that occurred from January 31, 1997, through March 15, 2004, to
$32,500 per day of violation for violations that occurred from March 16, 2004 through January

12, 2009, and to $37,500 for violations that occurred after January 12, 2005.

General Allesations

29. Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 28 of this CAFO as if set forth in
this paragraph.
30. At all times relevant to this CAFO, Respondent was a domesiic corporation

registered and doing business in Minnesota.



31. Respondent was therefore a “person” and a “fivm,” as defined 2t 40 CF.R. § 745;83,
at all times relevant to this CAFO.

32. During or around Ociober 2013 and November 2013, Rcspeﬂdent performed {or
directed workers to perform) for compensation renovations at a residential home in Owatonna,
Minnesota, a dwelling built in or axound 1939 (“Owatonné propeity”).

33. The Owatonna properiy is a “residential dwelling” and “target housing” as defined
at 40 C.FR. § 745.103.

34, Respondent removed and feplaced approXi_mately 8 windows, which distﬁrbed and |
removed painted surfaces and components and generated paint dust and debris at the Gwatonna
propezty.

35. Respondent’s work at the Owatonna property during or around October 2013 and
November 2013 was a “renovation” as defined at 40 C.F.R. § 745.83.

36. Fredrick FIemrrﬁng and Chris Flemming conducted renovation work on the
Owatonna property for Waseca Quaﬁty Siding and Window, Inc., during or around O;—tol-aer 2013
and November 2013.

37. At all times relevant to this CAFO, Fredrick Flemming and Chris Flemming were

“renovators” as defined at 40 C.F.R. § 745.83, at all times relevant to this CAFO.

Counis

Count 1: Performance of Renovations in Target Housing without Fixm Certification

38. Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 37 of this CAFO as if set forth in

this paragraph.



39. Under 40 CFR. § 745.81(a)(2) a.nc_i 745.89; firms that perform renovatioﬁs on target
housing must apply for EPA certification and become cerfified by EPA before performing the
renovations.

40. During the ﬁmé Respondent performed renovations on the Owatonna property in or
" around Octéber 2013 and November 2013, Respondent was not certified by EPA as a firm
qualified to perform renovation activities in target housing. . |

| 41. Respondent’s performance of renovations in target housing Withoﬁt firm
certification from EPA consiitutes a violation of 40 CFR. § 745.81(2)(2)(ii), 40 C.FR. §
745.87(a), and 15 U.S.C. § 2689, - ' |

Count 2: Failure to Provide Pamphlet to Homeowner in Advance of Renovation

42. Complainant incorporates parag_raphs 1 through 37 of tﬁis CAFO as if set forth in
this paragraph. |

43, Under 40 CFR. § 745.84(a)(1), the fum performing the renovation in target
housing must provide the owner of the target housing with the pamphlet and obtain from, the
owner a written acknowledgement that the owner has received the pamphlet or obtain a
certificate of mailing at least 7 days pﬁor to the 1‘en§vation.

44, Respondent failed to provide the owner of the Owatonna property with the pamphlet
and failed to obtain from the owner a written acknowledgement that the owner has received the
pamphlet or to obtain a certificate of mailing at least 7 days prior to the renovation activities
described in paragraphs 32 and 34, above. |

45. Respendent’s failure to provide the owner of the Owatonna property with the

pamphlet and to obtain from the owner a written acknowledgement that the owner has received



ihe pamphlet or to obtain a certificate of mailing at least 7 days prior to the renovation activities
described in paragraphs 32 and 34, above, constitutes a violation of 40 C.F.R. § 745.84(a)(1), 40
CF.R. § 745.87(a), and 15 U.S.C. § 2689, .

Count 3. Failure to Collect All Paint Chips and Debris and Seal in Heavy-Duty Bag after
Renovations

46. Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 37 of this CAFQO as if set forth in
this paragraph. | |

47. Under 40 CFR. § 745.85(aj(5)(i)(A), the firm performing renovations in target-
housing must collect all paint chips and debris and seal the material in a heavy-duty bag without
dispersing any of it.

48. Respondent failed to collect all paint chips and debris and seal the material iﬁ a
heavy-duty bag without dispersing any of it Whilé performing -the renovation activities described
in paragraphs 32 and 34, above, at the Owatonna p£0per‘fy.

49, Respondent’s failure to collect all paint chips and debris and seal the material in a
heavy-duty bag without dispersing any of it whﬂ¢ performing the renovation activities described
in paragraphs 32 and 34, above, at the Owatonna propeirty constitutes a violation of 40 C.F.R.
§ 745.85(a)5)(A)(A), 40 C.F.R. § 745.87(a), and 15 U.5.C. § 2689. |

Count 4: Failure to Retain and Make Available All Records Necessary to Demonsirate
Compliance with 40 C.F.R. Part 745, Subpart B

50. Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 37 of this CAFO as 1t set forth in
this paragraph.
51. Under 40 CF.R. § 745.86(a), firms performing venovations must refain and, if

requested, make available to EPA all records necessary to demonstrate compliance with the



rre_sidential property renovation requirements at 40 C.F.R. Part 745, Subpart E, for a period of 3

vears following completion of the renovation. Under 40 CFR § 745.86(b), such records
include documentation that the firm complied with the work practice standards in 40 C.F.R. §
74585, that a certified renovator was assigned to the project, and that the certified renovator
performed or directed workers who performed the renovation aétivities.

52. Respondent failed or refused to establish and maintain records, or to make available
| such records, according to the requirements of 40 CF.R. § 74586(a) and 40 CF.R.
§ 745.86(b). | |

N 53. Respondent’'s failure to éstablish and maintain, or to make available records,
violates 40 C.F.R. § 745.86(a}; 40 C.F.R. § 745.86(b); 40 C.I.R. §§ 745.87(a),(b); and 15 U.5.C.

§2689.

- Civil Penaltv
54. Pursuant to Section 16(a) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2615(a), Complainant has
determined that an appropriate civil penalty to setile this action is $4,000. In determining the
penalty amouﬁt, Complainant considered the nafure, circumstances, extent and gravity of the
violations alleged, and, with respect to Respondent, its ability to paf, the effect on Respondent’s
ability to continue to do business, any history of prior such violations, i{espondent’s degree of
cﬁlpability, and such other factors as justice may require. Complainant aiso considered EPA’s
Interim Final Consolidated Enforcement Response and Penaﬁy Policy for the Pre-Renovation
Education Rule: Renovation, Repair and Painting Rule; and Lead-Based Paint Activities Rule,
dated August 19, 2010.

55. Within 30 days after the effective date of this CAFO, Respondent must pay the

10



$4,000 civil penalty for the TSCA. violations by sending a cashier’s or ceriified check, payable to
“Treasurer, United States of America,” to:

U.S. EPA

Fines and Penaliies.

Cincinnaii Finance Center

P.0. Box 975077

St. Louds, Missourt 63197-9000

The check must note the following: the.case fitle ("‘In the Matter of Waseca Quality Siding and
Window, Inc.”) and the docket number of this CAFO.
56. A transmittal letier stating Respondent’s name, complete address, and the case

docket number must accompany the payment in paragraph 55. Respondent must send a copy of

the check and transmittal letter to:

Regional Hearing Clerk (E-197)
U.S. EPA, Region 5 '
77 West Jackson Boulevard
Chicago, Hlinois 60604

Pamela Grace (LC-8])

Pesticides and Toxics Compliance Section
U.S. EPA, Region 5

77 West Jackson Boulevard

Chicago, Hllinois 60604

Tillian Rountree (C-14J)
Office of Regional Counsel
U5, EPA, Region 5
77 West Jackson Boulevard
Chicago, Illinois 60604
57. This civil penalty is not deductible for federal tax purposes.
58. If Respondent does not pay the civil penalty by the deadline, EPA may refer this

matter to the Attomey General, who will recover such amount, plus interest, by action in the

appropriate district cowt of the United States under Section 16(a) of TSCA, 15 U.B.C. § 2615(a).

1



The validity, amount, and appropriateness of the civil penalty are not reviewable in a collection
action.

59. Pursuant to 31 C.ER. § 901.9, Respondent must pay interest, fees; and penaliies on
any amount overdue under this CAFO. Interest will acciue on any amount overdue from the date
the payment was due at a rate established, pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717, by the Secretary of the.
" Treasury. Respondent must pay a $15 handling charge each moﬁth thaf any portion of the
penal‘ff is more than 30 days past due. In addition, Respondent must pay a 6 percent per year
pénalty on any principal amount 90 days past due.

60. Within 60 days of the effective date of this CAFO, Respondent shall submit a copy
of the certificate of dissolution from the Minnesota Secretary of State, § 302A.734, showing the
date Respondent is dissolved. Respondent shall send this copy to Pamela Grace and Jillian
Rountres at the addresses in paragraph 56. Furiher, by its signature below, Respondent certifies
that if it continues in business or completes any further renovations before its dissolution, the
firm will beconie certified under 40 C.F.R. § 745.89 before conducting such renovations and it
will follow all RRP Rulé requirements as set forth in 40 C.F.R. Part 745, Subpalt E. |

61. Should Respondent fail to proviﬁc{é“the certificate of dissolution or to dissolve as a
business in Minnesota as specified in paragraph 60, it shall pay a penalty of $8,140, less any
penalty already paid, within 30 days of the date the certificate is due as stated in paragraph 60,
_ but also including any extensions of that deadline granted in writing by EPA. The payment shall
be by the methods and with the notice prescribed in paragraphs 55 and 56.

62, RGSpondent.’s forthcoming dissolution was an important consideration in the '

calculation of the pepally m this matter under 15 US.C. § 2615(a). By its signature below,

12



Respondent certifies that iis dissolution is not the result of this matier.

(zenersl Provisions

63. The effective date‘of this CAFO is the date on which it is filed with the Regional
Hearing Clerk.

64.  Consistent with the “Standing Order Authorizing E-Mail Service of Order and Other
Drocuments .Issued .by the Regional Administrator or Regional Judicial Officer under the
Consolidated Rules,” dated March 27, 2015, the parties consent to service of this CAFO by e-
mail at the following valid e-mail addreéses: rountree.jﬂlian@eﬁa.gdv (for Complaﬁﬁnt} and
Pérry.Berg@phblawofﬁce.com (for Respondent). The péﬁies waive their right to service by the
methods specified in 40 C.IR. § 22.6.

| 65‘. This CAFO resolves Respondent’s liability for the federal civil penalfies for the
violations alleged i11r the CAFO and no others.

66. This CAFO does not affect the rights of the EPA or the United States to pursue
appropriate injunctive or other equitable relief or criminal sanctions for any violations of faw.

| 67. This CAFO doés not relieve Respondent’s responsibility to comply with TSCA, the
Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992, the Tead Residential Lead-Based
" Paint Disclosure Program, and other applicable federal, state, and local laws.

68. By its signature below, Respondent certifies that it is complying with TSCA and 40
C.F.R. Part 745.

69. The terms of this CAFO bind Respondent, and its successors and assigns.

70. Each person signing tflis CAFO certifies that he or she has the authority to sign for |

the party whom he or she represents and to bind that party to its terms.

13



71. Each party agrees to bear its own costs and aftorneys’ fees in this action.

72. This CAFO constitutes the entire agreement between the parties.

14



In the Matter oft Waseea (uality Siding and Window, Ine.
Docket No. TSCA-05-2017-0001

Waseca Quality Siding and Windew, Inc., Respondent

A [(ﬁ’ - | (%/fﬂe‘/;’? -?/Z,r/mwftr

Date - Fredrick Flemming : /
Vice President
Waseca Quality Siding and Window, Inc.

U.8. Environmental Protection Agency, Complainant

228 [/ 2ete - %I/M%W/ o

Date Marg et M. Guerriero
| Pir ecter
Land and Chemicals Division

15



In the Matter of: Waseea Quality Siding and Window, Inc.
Docket No.  79CA-05-2017-0001
Final Oxder
This Consent Agréement and Final Order, as agreed to by the parties, shall become
effective immediately upon filing with the Regional Hearing Clerk. This Final Order concludes

this proceeding pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.18 and 22.31. ITIS 50 ORDERED.

T s n, REDT G O
Date . - Ann Coyle (\‘-\}
' Regional Judicial Officer
United States Environmental Protection Agency
Region 5

16



n the matter of: Wassca Quality Siding snd Window, Inc.
Decket Number:  7§CA-05-2017-0001

I certify that [ served a 1:1‘]. n
Order, docket number

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

on ect copy of the forecoing Consent Agreement and Final
A-{)5- 2(}17{J g sOIne &

001 _, which was filed on

4»4!,90/7
J

Copy by E-mail to
Attorney for Respondent:

Copy by E-mail to
Attorney for Complainant:

Copy by E-mail to

EPA enforcement siaff contact:

Copy by E-mail to
Regional Judicial Officer:

in the following manner to the following addressees:

Perry Berg
Paiton Hoversten & Berg, P.A.
Perry.Berg@ohblawoliice.com

Jillian Rountree
rouniree.jillian/densa.oov

Pamela Grace _
grace.pamelal@eps. gov

Ann Coyle
covle.ann{mena. ooV

Dated: Q‘Mzzﬁm ’2?% 20/ 7
J

ADawn Whjtehead
Reglonal Hearing Clerk
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5



